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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of NK Toll Read Limited

Report ont the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NK Toll Road Limited (“the
Company"}, which comprise the RBalance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of rofit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements™).

[ our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"} and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, its Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {"SA"} specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are indepencent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained js sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion en the financial

statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report and shareholder's
Information, but dees not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we de not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Unit No 122, 1st Floor, Nahar & Seth incustrial Estate, Cardinal Gracious Rd, Uhakalasandnen (E), Mumbai 400099,

% e . . ;
| +912246083939/46083940 [} mumbai@mkps.in B2 www.mkps.in
Also at: New Delhi, Bengaluru, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Raipur, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Sambalpur, Rourkela

e e e




& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing se, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of cur report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financia} Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for's " aieguardmg the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and: ‘other irregularities; se]ection ‘and -application of the appropriate
accounting pollcles, making judgements and estimates that ére reasonable and prudent; and
design, 1mp]ementauon and maintenance of adequate mternai financial controls, that were
operating effectwely for ensuring the accuracy. ‘and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the pxepal ation and fair pr eqenhtlon of the financial statements that give a true and
' free from material m1sstatement whether due to fi: aud oI £1Tor.

fair view and aI

In preparing the ﬁnam:ial statements, management is Iesponmble-fm ‘assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, dksclosmg, as applicable, matters 1elated to going concern
and using the gmng concel n basis of accountmg unless management elthe: intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operatmns or has no realistic alternative but to, do S0.

Those Board of Directors are al‘;o responsmle for overseeing the Company s ﬁnancna? reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is 1ot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
ecenomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements, :

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
ene resulting from error, as fraud may invoilve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements. 01' __.Such disclosures are madequate to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are basod on the audit evidence obtamed up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, futu:e events or conditions may cause the Colnpany to cease to continue as a

going conc

«  Evaluate . the overall presentation, str uctul‘e and content of the financial statements,
111c§ud1ng the disclesures, and whether the fnanual statemenis represent the underlying
tr amdctmns and events in a manner lhat achieves fair pr esent imn

Materiality is the magmtude ofnnsslatcments in the financial state ts that, individuaily or in
aggregate, makes: it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably know]edgeable user of
the Ind AS l‘inanmal Statemems may be lnﬂuonced We consider quantltatwe materiality and

qualitative factors in:

i, planning the scopé' of our audit work and in evaluating the results of pur work; and
il. toevaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Staterments.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to cominunicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent appiicable.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

€] On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on IECOld by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31,2023, from being appointed as a 4_:]_11_(_3_;10_1 in terms of section 164{2) of the

Act;

f} With lespect to the adequacy of the mtemal {manaal controis over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to thcsc financial state_mcnts and the operating
effectweness of such controls, refer ta our separate Reportin “Annexure B”.

g) With iCSpeCt to the other matters to be included in the Audlt_ 's Repert in accordance
with the: Tequirements of section 197(] 6) of the Act, as amended we report that ne
remuneration has been paid by the ‘company te its directors duri mg the year. Hence the
rcqmrement ofthe company for comp!:ance under this section lS not apphcab]e

h) With respect to the othel mattel's to be included in the Auditor's Repmt in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

and as represented by the management:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2023 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Refer Note No. 26 of

the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

{b) Management. has represented to vs that, ta the hest of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies}, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or’ mvest in “other - persons or:entities identified in any manner
whatsoevc: by or on behalf of the l"unclmg Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
pr_oygde any guarantee, secur 1ty or the - hl-:e on behalf of the Ultimate

Béneﬁciaries

(c) Based on our audit pmcedure conducted that are considered reasonable
-_.-'and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing l'l'lS come to our attention that
.cause us to believe that the representation given "by_.-_the management under
palaglaph {2) (i} (iv) (a) & (b) contain any matel1a1'mlsstatement

V. The Company has not decla; ed or paid any dividend du1 mg the year.

For MKPS & Assocmtes
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014EF

Nafendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN ; 23065025BGRDLP2092

Place :Munbai
Date :April 26, 2023
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“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORYT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED.

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of

audit, we state that:

i) (a)  (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not

applicable,
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its

intangible assels,

(b) In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting
requirements under this sub-clause is not applicable.

{c) There are no- mmlovable pmpex ties dlsciosed in the accompanying financial
statements. and hence the reporting leqmrements under sub-clause (¢} of clause

{i) ofpal_agl aph 3 of the order are not apphcab!e

(d) As exp}amed to us, the company has not Ievaiued any of its Intangibie assets
du:‘mg the year. S

(e) Accordmg to the information and cxp}anatmns prowded to us and on the basis of
oul examination of the récords: of the company, we report that no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at
Mar c11 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under thé Benami Transactions
(PI‘Dhiblthll) Act, 1988 {45 of1988) and rules made ther eundel

if) (a) Inour {melon and accmdmg to the information and e)\planatlons given to us, the
company does nof -carry ‘any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements
under sub-clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(b}  The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b)
of clause {ii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iti) ~ With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any loans

or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the
Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

(a)  As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and

records examined by us, during the year the Company has not provided any

guarantee or security. However, the Company has granted following loans to

cornpanies:

Particotars Amount
(Hs. in Million)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Holding

116.00

Fellow subsidiary
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Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in CddfeldTafRED ACCOUNTANTS
above cases
Holding

Fellow subsidiary

100.00
175.00

{b)  Inour opinion and according to information and explanations given us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the investments made, guarantee provided, security
given and the terms and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantee provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to Company’s interest.

{¢)  According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the
loans and advances in the nature of loans, where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, the repayments or receipts
are generally regular as per stipulated terms.

{d) According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the
loans, there is no amount overdue for more than ninety days.

(e)  Inour opinicn and according to information and explanation given and the books
of accounts and records examined hy us, loans granted which have fallen due
during the year have been renewed or extended as per details below and no fresh
loans ha\re bcen granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same
palt!GS. BEI
Par_t_lcu__la;s Aggregate  amount "-l’_‘o_f-_i Percentage of the aggregate
i existing loans renewed or 140 the total loans or
extended - i _advances in the nature of
“ '-_loans granted during the

year for

Holding Company | Rs. 100 Million 58.42

Fello'w Subsidiary | Rs. 63 Millibﬁ

(i The Company has not gmnted any loans or advances in the natul ¢ of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or pe1 jod of repayment to
Companies, ﬁrm'a Lumted Llabzh{y Parinerships or any other: paith Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the

Campany.

iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director
is interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on
the information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the
provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities
granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting requirements under
clause {iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

v]  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Conseguently,
the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government undey
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
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vii) (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generaily
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they hecame payabte.

{b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in clause {a) above which have not been deposited on account of
any dispule other than the following:
Nature of Nature Period for Forum where Amount
statute of Dues which the dispute is involved
amount peading (in Rs.)
related
Inecome Tax Income | AY.2012-13 High Court 1,77,36,714
Act, 1961 | gy ) R i Bombay

viii) Accmdmg to the information and pr!anatlons and representation given to us,

there are no transactions relating to previously’ umecordcd income that has been

SLu_rendered or disclosed as income durmg the. year in the tax assessments under
lhe'.lncome Tax Act, 1961. . .

. In our opinion and accoxdmg to the 1;1f01mat10n and explanations given
_and bocks of accounts and records examined b_ us, the Company does not
have any borrowing from banks or financial institution during the year and
“hence the reporting undel sub-clause {a) and (b) of clause (ix) of the order
"-'._'-a:e notapphcab]c L :

() ]n om oplmon and accordmg to the information and expianallons given to
us, no fresh ter m loans have been taken duri ing the year.:

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion, no funds raised on short term basis have been prima-facie being
used for long term purposes during the year.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {e} of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

(0 The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or asscciate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(x) (a} The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence clause {x){(a} of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares or fully or partly or eptionally convertible debentures and Hence
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reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 &'thé BildeREADAGRICIEN TANTS
to the Company.

(xi) (a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the financial statements and as per information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

o) The company is not mandated to have a vigil mechanism in terms of section
177(9) of the Act.

(xii} In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefare, the pravisions of clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xiii} In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations given Lo us, all
transactions with related parties are in compllance with section 188 of the Act and
their details. have heen disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. As per: infor matlon and explanation given to us,
sectlon 177 of the Act is not apphcable to Lhe company

(%iv) {8).-In our opinion, and accor ding 10 lhe infmmation and explanations given to
-7 us, the Company has an mtel na] audit system commensurate with the size

and nature of its busmess

(b} 8 . We have considered the internal audit reports:of the Company issued tilt
“-date, for the ]}el‘lod undel audit for the pu:pose of planning cur audit

""__-pi ocedurcs

(xv) Accordmg to the 1nfo;matmn and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with. dlleCtOIS or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

{xvi) {a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b) in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934,

{c) In our epinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CiC) as defined in
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d} As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company (CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investinent Companies (Reserved Bank} Directions,

2016,
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(xvii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the

immediately preceding financial year,

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

{xix)} Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial labilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowiedge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guaraitee nor any assurance that al liabllities falling due within a period of one
year from, the balance sheet date, will get disch u’ged by the Company as and when

they fali due

(xx} Accordmg te the information and explanatmns gwen to us and on the basis of our
audit ‘procedures, The Corporate Social Rcsponsabillly (CSR] contribution under
section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company Therefore, the provisions of
c!ause {xx) {a) & (b} of paragr aph 3 ofthe Order are noi appimble to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants - o
Firm Registration no. 3020145 B

'Ngr’endra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDLP2092

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B”" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR FONE REID ANANCISLTANTS
STATEMENTS OF NK TOLL ROAD LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internai financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statement of NK Toll Road Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Campany for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internaj Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit: of Internal ‘Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Char ter ed Accountants of India (“JCAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, :mplementatxon ‘and ‘maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls ‘that were operating effecuveiy for ensu:mg the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's. pol;c:es the safeguarding of its
assets, the preventlon and detection of frauds and ervors, the. accuracy and completeness of
the accounting ‘records, and the timely prepaj ation of relzable fm"mc:a} information, as

reguired under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur Iespons;ljlilty }s to exXpress an opmlon on the Company's inter nal {“nancmt controis over
financial reporting wnth reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included cbtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
inancial repor ting with reference to these financial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reiiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringciples. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the conipany's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Cuntm!s Over Financial Reporting With
Reference Te These I”manaai Statements

Because of the mhelent inmtat;ons of internal lmanc:a} eontro]s over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, mcludmg ‘the pUSSlb]]lly of coliusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected Also, projections of any evaluation of the mterna] financial centrols over
financial reporting with reference to these fmancml slatements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financia) repor tmg with reference to these
financial statements may become madequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree ofcompllance with the policies or proeedures may d(,tr,rlorate

Opinion

In our opinion, to the beel of our mformatlon and according to the exp!anatlons given to us, the
Company has, in all matenal xeSpects ‘an adequate internal financial ‘controls system over
financiat reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoerting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firin Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDLP2092

Place :Mumbai
__Date :April 26,2023




NK Toll Road Limited

CIN: Us7190MH2005PLC 154359
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Rs. Millions
. As at As at
Raticylare Note  march 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Concession Intangible assets 4 1,265.14 1,532.94
(b} Financial Assets
- Other Financial Assels He 0.13 0.13
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net} 1.60 3.87
{d) Deferred fax assets (net) 23 39.51 52.63
Total Mon-Current Assets 1,306.38 1,599.57
Current assets
(a) Financial Agsels
(i) Cash and cash equivaients ba 58.74 12.55
(i} Bank balances other than (i} Cash and cash equivalents
ahove 55 = =
{iii} Loans 5¢ 279.00 163.00
{iv) Other financial asset 54d 16,36 8.04
(b} Other current assets & 4.88 4.02
Total Current Assets 358,98 187.61
Total Assets 1,665.36 1,787.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7 44.77 44.77
{b) Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 8a 1,202.69 1,982,569
{c} Other equity 8b {637.16) {566.28)
Total Equity 1,310.30 1,461.18
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings g <
{b) Provisions 11b 5.18 1.87
Fotal Nen-Current Liabilities 518 1.87
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings -
(i) Trade payables
(A) Total cutstanding due of micro enterprises
& small enterprises g = -
(B) Total ocutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises & small enterprises 26.61 56.52
(iii) Other financial liabilities 10 24.70 7.16
(b) Other current liabilities 12 0.66 0.59
(c} Provisions 11a 300.9% 259.86
Total Current Liabilities 349.88 32413
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,665.36 1,787.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accouniants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

For and on behalf on board

Sandeep Joshi Mahesh Gaikwad
Director Director
DIN no: 08586595 DIN: 08664942

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

{Narendra Khandal)
APariner
Membership Number : 085025

Piace: Mumbai
Date: April 28, 2023




NK Toll Road Limited
CIN: Us7190MHZ005PLC1543569

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2023

s, Millions
: Year ended Year ended
Farticulats Note  prarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from QOperations 13 466.43 37715
Cther Income 14 23.61 12.68
Total Income 490.04 389.83
Expenses
Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 15 194 64 107.05
Employee benefits expense 16 18.03 13.01
Finance costs 17 31.14 78.53
Depreciation and amartization expense 4 267.80 274.84
Other expenses 18 21.10 19.83
Total expenses 533.71 493.26
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax {43.67) {103.43)
Exceptional tems - -
Loss before tax {43.67) {103.43)
Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax chargef(credit) 23.12 51.32
Income tax for eariier years - 1.59
23.12 52.91
Profit/(Loss) after tax {66.79) {156.34)
Other Comprehensive Income /{Loss)
~ tems that will not be reclassified to Incomef(Loss)
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans ; Gains / {Loss) {4.09} {0.37)
benefil plans : Gains f {Loss)
Other Comprehensive income income/{l.oss} {4.08} {0.37)
Total Comprehensive Income Incomef{Loss) {70.88) {156.71)
Earningsf{loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
Basic & Diluted 25 (14.92) {34.92)

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the financizl statements

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 3}902074E
A

‘(Ndrendra Khandal)

Fariner

Membership Number : 055025
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2023

For and on behalf on board

Sandeep Joshi Wﬁsh Gaikwad
Cirector Director

DIN no: 09586595 DiN: 06664942
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2023




NK Toll Road Limited

CIN: U67190MH2005PLC154359
Cash flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

c

Loss before tax

Adjustments for
Depraciation and amorisation expenses
Interest income
Finance Cost
Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment
Provision for Resurfacing expenses
Misceilaneous income

Cash Generated from Operations before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

{Increase)/decrease in financial assets

(fncrease)/decrease in other current assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/{decrease) in provisions

increasel(decrease} in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Taxes (paid) net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities - [A]

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
{Purchase)sale proceeds of intangible assets
(Investmenty/Redemplion in Fixed deposits with Banks
Inter corperate deposits given

Interest received
Net casit (used in) / generated from investing activities - [B}

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of Sub-debi
Repayment of long term borrowings
Irterest paid

Net cash used in financing activities - {C]

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ [A+B+C]
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts

Cash on hand
Total Cash and cash equivalents

Note:

Rs. Millions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(43.67) (103.43)
267.80 274.84
{2.92) {12.60)
31.14 78,53
0.61 0.35
121.96 43.25
{0.01} {0.08)
37401 280.87
{0.17) 274
(0.86) 0.08
(29.81} (9.59)
(98.91) {3.25}
0.07 0.49
{129.78} {9.52)
245,13 271.35
(3.18) G.17
241,94 277.52
2 0.13
- 212189
{116.00) {63.00)
0.25 18.00
{115.75} 167.32
(80.00} -
- {574.40)
- {55.26)
{80.00} {632.66)
46.19 {(187.82)
12.85 20037
88.74 12.558
58.62 12.47
0.12 (.08
58.74 12.55

The above Statement of Cash Fiows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows',

The balance lying in escrow / current account with banks of Rs. 14.86 miltion (Rs.12.47 million) held as security against borrowings.

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accoentants
Firm Registration No, 302014E

{Ij,érendra Khandal)

Partner

Membership Number : 065025
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aprit 26, 2023

For and on behalf on board

Sandeep Joshi MaHesh Gaikwad
Director Director

DIN no: 09586585 DIN: 06864942
Piace: Mumbai

Date: Aprit 26, 2023




NK Tolil Road Limited
CIN: U67190MH2005PLC154359
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs. Millions
Balance at the Changes in Baiance at the end
Particulars beginning f’f the equ._nty sha_re of the year/period
yeat/period capital during
the yeat/period
For the year ended March 31, 2022 4477} - 4477
For the year ended March 31, 2023 4477 - 44.77
B. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT (in nature of equity)
Rs. Mifliors
Balance at the Changes Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the during the of the year/period
year/period year/period
For the year ended March 31, 2022 1,082.69 - 1,982 60
For the year ended March 31, 2023 1,982.69 (i 80.00 1,902.69
Rs. Millions
Particuiars Reserves and Total
Surpius
Balance at April 01, 2021 {409.56) (409.56)
Profit for the year (156.34) {158.34)
Other comprehensive incomel/(loss) for the year -
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (0.37) (0.37)
Total comprehensive income for the year (156.71) {1566.71}
Baiance as at March 31, 2022 (566.28) (566.28)
Balance at Aprii 01, 2022 (566.28) (566.28)
Profit for the year (66.79) (66.79)
Other comprehensive incomei(loss) for the period
Remeasurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (4.09} {4.09)
Total comprehensive income for the period (70.88) (70.88)
For the year ended March 31, 2023 (637.16} (637.16)

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firmm Registration No. 302014E

(ﬁa’f‘endra Khandal)
Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 26, 2023

-Sandeep Joshi

For and on hehalf on board

‘Wahesh Gaikwad
Director Director
DiN no: 09586585 DIN: 08664042

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023




NK Toil Road Limited
CIN: UST180MH2005PLC154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate information

NK Toll Road Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on June 29, 2005, was awarded on Build,
Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, the widening of existing two-lane covering 33.48 kms stretch from Km
258.645 (End of Namakkal By pass) -Km 292.60 (Start of Karur Bypass) Section of Nationat Highway No.7
in the State of Tamilnadu and operation and maintenance thereof, under the Concession Agreement dated
January 30, 2006 with National Highways Autherity of india. The Concession Agreement is for a period of
20 vears from July 28, 2006 being the appointed date.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facilily will be transferred to NHAL

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Direclors on April 28, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorilies and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of direclors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the hoard / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre,19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001,

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Stalements comply in all material aspects with indian Accounting Slandards (Ind AS)
notified under Seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
I} af the Act, applicable Ind AS, cther applicable proncuncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ~ Millions, except where otherwise indicated.
The financial stetements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and

disciosures mandated by Schedule Il to the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable prenouncements and
regulations,

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabiliies in the balance sheet based an current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Expected to be realised within fwelve months after the reporting period, or
*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at jeast

twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liabifity is current when:
= s expected to be settled in narmal operating cycle

*  Itis due to be settied within twelve moenths after the reparting period, or
= There is no unconditional sight to defer the seltlement of the liability for at Jeast twelve months after

the reporting period
Ali other fiabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




NK Toll Road Limited
CIN: UG7190MH2005PLC154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency™. The functional statements

are presented in fndian Rupees (), which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a labifity in an orderly
transaction between market participants ai the measeremen! date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liabiiity, or
= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the assel or Hability, assuming that market parficipants act in their economic best interest.

A tair value measurement of a non-financiai asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sefling it to znother market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumslances and for which suffician
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unohservabie inputs.

All assets and fiabiliies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized withiny the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as foliows, hased on the lowest tevel input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asseis or ligbilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indireclly observable
Levet 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financia! Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurrng and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabifities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valualion by agresing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management aiso compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevani notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
(including those carried at amortised cost (note 20) and Quantitalive disclosures of fair value measurement

tierarchy (note 21).




NK Toll Road Limited
CIN: U67190MH2005PLC154359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

34

35

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recagnized up on transfer of control of promised services 1o customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue

The income from 1ol revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.

Others

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method,

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
eslablished.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Tall Road Concession rights where it Buit, Operates and Transfers (BOT) infrastruclure
used fo provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include
infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
nwdel is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) fo charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or al the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (ie.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference fo the relative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration seceived or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised aver the concession period on the basis of projected toli
revenue which reflects the patlern in which the assets economic benefils are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected patlern of economic benefits. Refer note 24 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditionat right to receive cash or anather
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall. if any, between amounis received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading “Cther Financial Assets" and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the bafance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession granfor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the intangible

assel model.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic: benefits are expected from #ts future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the

financial asset expire.




NK Toli Road Limited
CIN: US7190MH 2005P1.C154358
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

36

Maintenance obligations

Confractual obligations to maintain, repiace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are reguired to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recegnized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to selfle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted o s
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflecis current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the liability.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the faxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the counlrigs where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to siluations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT') under the provisions of Income-lax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the stalement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax faws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax Hability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence thal the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit assaciated with it will fiow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabifities are offset only if, the Company:

a}has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts: and
b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seitle the liability simultaneousty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred {ax assets are recognized for unused fax losses to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is na longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred
tax assel to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporfing date and are
recognized to the extent that # has become probable thal fulure faxable profits will zllow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liahility is settled, based on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized ouliside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized cutside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equily}. Deferred tax ilems
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or direcitly

in equity.

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legsily enforceable right exisis 1o set off
current tax assels against current tax liabifities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority. -




NK Toli Road Limited
CIN: U67190MH2065P1.C 354359
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

3.8 Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

3.9 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent lizbifity is a pessible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more unceriain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required 10 settie the obligation. A coitingenit Habiflly also atises In extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
fiability is not recognised in the books of accounts but its exstence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statemenis, however, the same are disclosed

where an Inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may nct be recoverable. An impairment ioss is recognized for the amount by which the
assef’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest fevels for which there are separately identifiable cash infiows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversat of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.
3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a resull of
a past event, it is probable thal an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to
setlle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense refating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fex rate

that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nen-monetary benefits that are expected o be seitied wholly
within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporling period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftled. The Habilities are presented as current

employee benefit obligations in the baiance sheet.

{ii) Leave obligations

The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick ieave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that wilt lapse. The
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3.13

3.14

portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed; the valuations are based on the employees' total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

{iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, incfuding
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the batance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated anaually by independent actuaries

using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefil obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash oulflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reperting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obiigation and the fair vaiue of plan assets. This cost is included in employes henefit expense

in the statement of profit and ioss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resuliing from plan amendmerts or
curlailments are recognized immediately in profit or ioss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations, The Company has no further payment obligations once the coniributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is avaitable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shott-term
deposits with an original maturily of three manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value,

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of

the Company's cash management.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any coniract Lhat gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equily instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initialiy at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly atlributable transaction cost o the acquisition of
the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame.
established by regulation or convention in the market place {regudar way trades) are recognised or],;tf’?é'
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trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sef! the asset,

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assels are classified in following categories;

*  atamortised cost
*  at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= atfair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The assel Is held within a business model whose objective is to hoid assets for coliecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractuat terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstending,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and ather receivables under financial
assets {except Investments) are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active markst.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured af amorlised cost using the
Effective interest Rate (EIR) method. Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The {osses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statemen! of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other

receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive ncome

Alt investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVIPL, The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevacable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recyaling
of the ameounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OC)) to the Statement of Prafit and Loss, even on sale
of invesiment. However, the Company may fransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPI calegory are measured at fair value with afl changes recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.
De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred controf of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its sights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has relained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset fo the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liabifity. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obfigations that the Company has retained.
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credi losses associated with ils assets
carried at amortised cost and FVQCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has _

been & significant increase in credit risk,

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model.
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<«  lLoans receivables measured at amortised cost
= Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHA!

“«  Loans given fo employees
The impairment methodolegy for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generaily short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is defermined as 12 months

expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For foans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every foan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, untif the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that na loan loss aflowance needs to be

recorded in the books of accounts.

Expecied credit luss (ECL} impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other confractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the halance
sheet. The allowance reduces the nef carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

Financial Liabitities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financiai liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilites are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EiR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings al floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not materiai. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabiliffes are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization Process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acguired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities  payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if fonger). If not, they are presented as

non-current liabifities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest methad, s
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Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and 1.oss when the ligbilifies are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the abligation under the liahility is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is repfaced by another from the same lender on substantiaily
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substzntially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition: of the original liability and the recognition of a new lizbitity.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is & currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settie the liabiliies simultaneously.

3.15 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is idenfified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

3.16 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

—_—

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
faclors, inchuding expectations of fulure events thal may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates an¢ assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are

disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix D of Ind AS 115 "Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHA! as per
which the Company wouid participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. {oll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAL.

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assels recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 'Accounting of intangibie assets under service concessionaire arrangement.

{fi) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating fo carred forward tax lossas fo the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be ulilized. However, the utitization of tax losses aiso depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy cerlain tests at the time the fosses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

(il Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected foff
revenue which reflecls the patiern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
tolal toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volurme projections; Amortization Is revised in-pase.
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of any materia! change in the expecled pattern of economic benefits,

(iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure}

3.7

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations fo discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of

expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference {0 the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time fo time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements —This amendment requires the entities o disclose their
material accourting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on ar after 1st April 2023.

ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ~This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st Aprif 2023,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initiai recognition exemption
50 that it does not apply 10 fransactions that give rise to equal and offsetling temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annua! perieds beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement,
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets
Rs. Millions

Tolif Collection right

Rerflsulare (Intangible Assets)
Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 3,146.18
Additions .
DisposaisiAdjustment -
Closing gross carrying amount 3,146.18
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,338.40
Qpening accumulated Amartisation and impairment 1,338.40
Amortisation charge for the year 274.84
Disposals/Adjustment *
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1.613.24
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 1,532.94
Year ended March 31, 2023

3,146.18

Qpening gross carrying amount
Additions 5
Disposals/Adjustment -

Closing gross carrying amount 3,146.18
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,613.24
Opening accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,613.24
Amortisation charge for the year 287.79
Disposals/Adjustment -

Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,881.04
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 1,265.14

Note :

1) The company has included flat at Dahisar west in Mumbai district of Rs 0.93
Miflion in grass block of Intangible assets,

2) All the litle deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company

3) No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988,
Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami Property held is not applicable.
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Rs. Millions
Particulars s at A at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note & (a} - Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in curent accounis 58.62 12 .47
Cash on hand 012 0.08
58.74 12.55
Note 5 {c} - Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans
- Intercorporate daposits to Related Party (Refer Note No 31) 279.00 163.00
279.00 163.00
Note:

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other peraon, that are:

{a) repayable on demand; or

(b) without specifying any terms or pariod of repayment,

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or Percentage to the total
advance in the nature Loans and Advances in
of loan outstanding the nature

Related parties

Reliance infrastructure Limited Rs 100 Mn amount of 100%
imtercoporate deposits
given

JR Toll Road Limited Rs 113 Mn amount of 100%
Intercoporate deposits
given

Reliance Aerostructure Rs 66 Mn amount of 100%
Intercoporate deposits
given

Rs. Millions
. As at As at

Fartisulats March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 5 (d} - Other financial assets - current

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Interest accrued on ICD 2.68 =

Claim receivable from NHAI 10.14 4.66

Security deposils 1.48 i.48

Other receivables 2.07 1.90

16.36 8.04

Note 5 (e} - Non Current financial assets

{Unsecured considered good)

Security deposils 0.13 0.13

0.13 0.13

Note 6 - Other Current assets

(Unsecured considered good)

Advance o vendors (.39 0.28

Advance to employees 0.72 5

Prepaid Expenses 32 1.38

Duties and taxes receivable 0.56 2.38

4.58 4.02
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Note 7 - Share Capital

Particeulars

Note 7 {&} - Authorised Equity Share Capital

At the beginning of the year

Add : Increase during the year

Atthe end of the year

Notc 7 (b) - lasued, subscribed and paid-up syuily

share capital
At the beginning of the year

Add : Increase during the year
At the end of the year

Note 7 (¢} - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Rs. Millions

Nos of
Shares

As at

Ag at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

10,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

44,717,000

44,77 ,000

1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,008,00
4477 44.77
44,77 4477

The Company has only one class of shares referred 1o as Equily Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/, In the event
of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled fo receive remaining assels of the
company, after distribution of alt preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to ihe aumber of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

Note 7 (d) - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year 44,77,000 44,77,000
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the vear - %
Nos of Shares at the end of the year 44,77,600 44,77,600
Note 7 (e) - Shares held by the holding company
of their subsidiaries/assaclates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Hoiding Company) & its nominees
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) & its nominees 44,77,000 44,77,000
{Name of Olher Company holding Shares)
(Relationship of Company)
Note 7 (f} - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Nos of Shares 44,77,000 44.77,000
% of hotding 100% 100%
Note 7g - Details of Shares heid by promoters
Promoter Name No. Of Shares | % of Shares
Relignce infrastructure Limited 44,77,000 100.00%
Total 44,77,000
Note 7i - Details of Shares Pledged, Safekeep and Unpledged by promters
B at

Particulars March 31, As al

No of Share 2023 March 31, 2022
Pledged 13,43,100 36,26,370
Safekeep 8,560,570 8,50,570
Unpledged share 22,83,330 60
Total No of Share 44,77,000 44 77,000
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Rs. Millions

Particufars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Note Ba - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of equity)
Al the beginning of the year

Increase / {decrease) during the year

At the end of the year

Note 8a(i) - Sub-ordinated debt infused by holding company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Hoiding Company)

1,082.60 1,082.69
(80.00) z
T7,902.60 %,982.69
1,082.69 1,982.69

Terms and rights allached to Sub-ordinated debte infused by holding company.
i} Subordinated debt is the part of holding company Equily from the promoters of the company for the project, which is

unsecured and inferest free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders;

i} No repayment/redemptionfinterest servicing allowed during the meratorium period of the long term project toan.

Note Bb- Other equity -Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earnings

Note B(bH{i) - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the year
Profit/{loss) for the year

directly in refained earnings
~ Remeasuremens of post-employements
obligations {net of tax)

At the end of the year

(637.16) {566.29)
(637.16) (566.29)
(566.28) (409.56)
(66.79) (156.34)
(4.09) 0.37)
(637.16) (566.28)




Rs. Milions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2623

As at
March 31, 2022

Note 9 - Trade Payables

Total outstanding due to Micro and smal! enterprises
Total oulstanding dues of creditors olher than micro enterprises & smalt enterprises

Related 2.24 2.24
Qther 24.37 54.28
Totat 26.61 56.52
a) Trade Payabies ageing schedule

As at 31st March 2023

. OQuistanding for below periods from date of transaction
Particulars
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-2 Years More than 3 Years Total

1) MSME - - i - -

2) Others 0.06 4.19 4.50 8.05 16.88
3) Bispuled Dues - MSME - - o
4) Lisputed Dues - Others - - - - -
5) Unbifled dues - - - - $.72
Total Trade Payables 0.06 4.19 4.59 1.54 26.61
As a2t 31st March 2022

Particulars Cutstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More fhan 3 Years Total

1) MSME - - < - -

2) Cihers 3.83 5.93 1.54 30.26 41.57
3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - =
5) Unbilled dues - - - - 14.95
Total Trade Payahles 3.83 5,23 1.54 1.54 56,52

¢} Dues te Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under he "Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprise Development Agl, 2006" is based on the information
available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on
fequests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amountsfinteres! payable amounts for delayed payments (o such vendors ai the
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any garlier years and accordingly there is no
interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respecl of paymenls made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

ASTEE

Rs. Millions
AL at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Note 10 - Other financial Habilities - curramt

Interest acerued but not due

3.95

2.61

Employee benefils payable
Relention money payable ( Refer Foot Note) 17.75 4.55
Total 21,70 7.16
Foot Note:
Retention Payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Retention money payable 14.34 0.78 0.27 237 17.76
Total 14.34 0.78 0.27 2,37 17.76
As at 31st March 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for below perlods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Retenlion money payable 0.78 0.27 - 3.50 4.55
Total 0.78 0.27 - 3.50 4.56




NK Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs. Millions
- Asat Asar
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 11 {a) - Provisions - Current
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 0.70 0.33
- Leave encashment 0.04 0.04
Others
- Resurfacing expenses - Refer Note 300.16 25949
Total 300,91 259.86
Note
Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows:
At the beginning of the year 259.49 193.07
Charged / {credited) to Statement of Profit and 1.oss
Provision made during the year 121.96 43.25
Excess provision written back + -
unwinding of discount 31.14 2317
Ameunt utilised during the year (112.42) -
At the end of the year 300.16 259.49

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAI, the company is cbligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under concession. The
cempany estimates lhe likely provision required towards resurfacing and acerues the cosls on a slraight line basis over the period &t the end of
the which resurfacing would be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 ' Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Conlingent Assets.

Rs. Millions

Particutars

As al
March 3, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Naote 11 (b)- Provislons - Non - Current

Provision for employee benefits

- Graluity 5.09 1.80
- Leave encashment 0.09 0.07
Total 5.18 1.87
Rs. Millions
- LEE Agat
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 12 - Other current liabilities
Duties and taxes payable
Total

0.66

{.59

0.66

0.59
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Rs. Mitlions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Note 13 - Revenue from operations

Operating income
- Income from tolf collections - Refer Note . 26:2

Note 14 - Other income

- On fixed deposits

- Others interest on (CD

- Others Interest on income tax refund
Excess pravision for exps written back
Miscefianeous income

Note 15 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Efectricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 16 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution o provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

l.eave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 17 - Finance Costs

interest on loan
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 18 - Other expenses

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

l.egal and Professional Charges
- Audit Fees

Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscelianeous expenses

466.43 377.18
466.43 37715
5 12.60
2.68 -
0.25 -
20.68 -
0.01 .08
23.61 12,68
8.42 18.45
181.07 84.94
477 2.51
; 0.09
0.38 1.08
194.64 107.05
17.22 11.99
0.93 0.56
0.33 0.24
0.28 0.11
0.27 0.1
19.03 13.01
- 54.10
31.14 2317
- 1.28
31.14 78.53
024 033
0.38 0.30
7.77 9.14
9.59 7.46
.24 0.24
0.34 0.22
2.54 2.14
2110

T 19,83

s
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Note 20 - Fair value Hierarchy

(a} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabifities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosaed

Rs. Millions
i As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial liabitities
Level 3
Fioating Rate Borrowings - -
Debentures - -
Retention money payable 17.75 4.55
Total financial liabitities 17.75 4.55

Recognised fair value measurements
Levet 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measurad using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuafion techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If ai! significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is inciuded in level 3. This is the
case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used fo value financial instruments include:

* the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principai swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance

sheet date
* the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Rs. Millions
) As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost
Fioating rate borrowings
Debentures =
Retention money payable 17.75 4.55

17.75 4.55
Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowings - =
Debentures - =
Retention money payable 17.75 4.55
NHA! Premium Payable
17.75 4.55

The carrying value amounts of security deposits, relention money receivable, cash and cash equivalents.trade*;ayaolas.*emp!oyee
benefits payable approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.
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Note 19 - Fair value measurements

Signficance of financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments Re. Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Af amortised Cost

Loans 279.00 163.00
Security Deposits 1.61 1.61
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2.68 -
Cash and Cash equivalents 58.74 12.55
Claim receivable from NHAI 12.21 6.56
Total financial assets 354.23 183.72

Financial liabilities

At amortised Cost

Fioating Rate Borrowings - E
Debentures = -
Trade Payables 26.61 56.52
Retention money payable 17.75 4.55
interest accrued but not due - =
Employee Bensfits Payable 3.095 2.61
Total financial liabilities 48.31 63.68
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Note 21 ~ Firancial risk management

The company activifies exposes it 1o market risk, liquidity risk and credil risk.
This nofe explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed (o and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk EXP osure Measurement Management
arising from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Credit Diversification of bank
equivatents, trade ratings deposils, credit limils
receivables, financial and lelters of credit

assets measured af

amortised ¢ost.

Recognized financial Cash flow forecasting Actively Managed
assets and liabilities not Sensifivity analysis

denominated in Indian

Warket risk — foreign exchange

rupee {INR}

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at  Sensitivity analysis Actively Managed
variable
Rates

Liguedily risk Borowings and other Rolling cash flow Availability of committed
liabilities forecasts credit lines and

bomowing facililies
The company's risk management is carried out by & project finance team and central treasury team under policies approved by board of
directors. Company identifies, evaluales and hedges financial risk in close co-operation wilh the qQroup’s operating umits. The
Management of the company provides wrilien principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specilic areas, such as
inlerest rale sk and credit sk, use of derivaiive financial instrument and non-derivative fimancial instrument, and investments of excess
fiquidity.
Cammuodity risk:
The company requires for implementation {construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel and
other construclion malerials. For which, the company entered into fixed price contracl with the EPC contraclor and D&M Conlractor so as
to manage our exposure to price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is nol required.

Market risk - interest rato risk

The Bank loans foflows flealing rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fiuciuations carry a risk on financiais, the
company earn tolf income which is linked to WPI thus providing & nalural hedge to the interest rate risk,

a} Interest rate risk exposure

Rs. Milkons
. As at As at
Rordic s March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Variable Rale Borrowings - -
Fixed Rate Borrowings -
Totat - z
b) Sensitivity analysis
from bomowings as a result of changes in inlerest rates.
As at As at
Impact on profitfioss after tax March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points - Jrrm—"
fnterest rates decrease by 100 basis points -
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Note 22 - Capital risk management

The company objectives when managing capital are to

« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

* Maintain an oplimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

For the purpose of the company capital managemeni, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium, sub-debts and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The

primary objective of the company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in lighl of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the firancial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehaoiders, return capita! to shareholders or issue interest
free sub-ordinate debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The company includes

within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, frade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overail objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that 4 meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure reguirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for

managing capital for year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the folfowing gearing ratio:

Net debt inciuding tatal borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by
Tetal ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),
Rs. Miltions
Particulars aaat gl
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) - -
Equity {b) 1,310.30 1.461.19
Net debt to equity ratio {a) / (b} - -
Rs. Millions
; As at As at
Rarteulare March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) - -
Equity (b) 1,310.30 1,461,19

131030 146119

Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b)
Gearing ratio (a) f ¢
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Nate 24
Liquidity risk - Table

Liguidiy risk is the risk 1hai the Company may not be able fo meat its present and future cash and collaterat obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet ifs cash and collateral
fequirements. The Company closely menifors is fiquidity position and deploys @ robust cash management system. It maintaing
adequate sources of financing ncluding debt from banks at an optimized cost. The liguidity risk is managed on the basis of expected
maturity dates of the financla! fiabililies. The average credit period taken to selfle trade payables is about 30 to 50 days. The carrying
amounts are assumed lo be a reasonable approximation of Fair Value (2). The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining

confractual maturities.

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial lizbilities and net-setlied derivative financial liabiiities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period al the balance sheet date 1o the contracival maturily date, Derivative financial fiabilities are
included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanging of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the confractual undiscounted cash flows.

Rs. Millfons
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 More than 1 Total
year year
Hon-derivatives
Borrowings - - B
interest on Borrowings - - %
Trade and other payables 26.61 - 26.G1
Other financial liabifities 21.70 - 21,70
Total non-derivatives 48,31 - 48.31
Rs. Millions
As at March 21, 2022 Less than 1 Muore than 1 Tolal
yoar year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings - - -
interest on Bomowings - 5 -
Trade and other payables 56.52 - 56,52
Olher financial liabilities 7.16 - 7.16
Total non-derivatives 63.68 - 63.68
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Note 25 Earning per share

As at As af
Particutars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Profit / (Loss) attributabie to equity shareholders (Rs. Milions} (A) (66.79) {156.34)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted 4477000 44,77,000
earnings per share (Rs.) (B)

Earnings / (L.oss) per share (Basic and diluted} (Rs.) (A/B) {14.92) (34.92)
Nominal value of equity shares (Rs.) 10.00 1000
Note 26 - Contingent Liability

As at As at

RParticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1. Claims against the company noi acknowledged as debis and undar iifigation
Income Tax Claim

17.74 -

2.FasTag Penalty : -The company has been coliecting penafly from the users for using F asTag fanes withou! valid FasTAG, the same
has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is not payable to NHAI
notwithstanding the demands from MHA/, The aggregate amount of penally collected and appropriated under Income for March 2023
is Rs.7.04Miltion (upto March 2022is Rs.11.60 Miltion)

3.Independent Engineers! NHAI have issued various communication 1o the company purporledly iowards default in meeting the
maintenance obligation, of the company and consequential penalty on account of the same. The compa ny has contested the same

and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in the financial statements

4.Thete are numerous interpretative issies refating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2019 on Provident
Fund {PF} an the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as is applicability of effective date. The Company
has evaluating and there is no material impact on its financial statement. The Company, in respect of the above menlioned
Conlingenl Liabilifies has assessed thal it is only possible bul not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required.

5.The inditect fax authorilies during an invesligation in Financial Year 2016 staled that the Company was not eligivte o avait
CENVAT credit as there was ne output service liable to tax, The departmant issued an order in April 2046 demanding interest on the
CENVAT credit availed for pariod October 2010 te March 2012 and penally on account of wilful suppression of facts. The Company
has appealed agains! such arder bafore the Tax Appeliate Tribunal. The tribunai has set aside the said adjudication order againsl
which depariment has now gone in appea! before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai.

Note 26 a
The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastruclural facilities as per Section 186 (1 1) read with Schedute Vi of the

Act. Accordingly, Section 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company,

Note 27 - Arbitration Claims by the Company
EPC Conltractor had raised claims againsl the Company under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose duoe (o

events altributed fo NHAL The claims were scrutinized by the Company and after dug deliberations, it was agreed between the
Company and the EPC Contractor that the claims shall be referred to NHAI for consideration.

Accordingly the Company along with its claims, submitted the claims of the EPC Contractor to NHAI amounting to 1,058.20 millions
for consideration. The claims were rejected by NHAI and accordingly afler following the due procedure of Dispute resolution, the
claims were referred to Arbitration. The Arbitral Tribunal pronounced an Award in favour of the Company for an amount of Re. 689.42
mitlions (includes interest of Rs. 363.59 miMlions 1ill the date of award). Further, the Tribunal has also awarded an interest @ 12%
from the date of Award till the dale of realization if the awarded amouni is not paid within 80 days from {he date of Award. Dn January
7, 2017 NHAI as per the Award passed by the Arbilral Tribunal paid an amount of Rs. 4.77 millions towards cost of arbitration and an
amount of Rs. 7.21 miilions towards delay in payment of grani during construction peried.

NiHAI challenged the arbitration award passed by tribunat before the single bench of the Han’ble High Court of Dethi. The Hon'bie
High Couri of Delhi on March 23, 2017 dismissed the plea of NHAL on merils. NHAI has challenged the Order passed by the single
bench of the High Court of Delhi in the division bench of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. Based on an interim Order of fhe division
bench of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, NMAI made further paymeni of Rs. 12.40 million as per the descending note of thg?

Arhitration Award.

The EPC Conlractor has agreed to awail the conclusion of the process in the Counts. it is also zgreed between the EPC Contra ]}\
and Company that payment lowards EPC Contraclor's claims shall be made to the EPC Contractor by the Company when the sanig
is received by NHAL The Company will update the EPC Contractor with regard to the status of the matter pending hefore the Hon'ble

iy, Court of Delh.
in\andfher arbitration betwsen the Company and NHAI, an Award was passed in favour of the Company amount to Rs. 111.2

miljang! The arbitral award was challenged by NHAI before the Hon'ble High Court Dalhi. However the parlies enlered inlo an
Aqgreegent throuah which NHA! refease an amount of Rs. 1043 millions as full and final seltlement of the Arbitral Award.
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Note 28 - Gratuity and other post-employment henefit plans

a) Defined conteibution plan
The foliowing amount recagnized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no
other cbligations other than the contribution payable fo the respective authorities.
Re. Millions
, As at . Asal

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 21, 2022
Contribution to provident fund and other furds 1.54 0.91

1.54 0.81

Total

a} Defined benefit plan
The company has a defined benefit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity plan s governed by the Paymenl of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitied to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on
the member's length of service and salary al refiremen! age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratully on depariure at 15 days salary (fast drawn salary) for each compleled year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Gratuily
Act, 1972 with tatal celling on graluily of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuity plan is funded.

The fellowing lables summaeries the The amounts recognised in the balanee sheel ang the movements in the net defined benefit obligation

over the year are as folfows:
Rs. Millions
i As at As at

Rarticufars March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.21 0.16
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.12 0.08
Expenses Recognised 0.33 0.24
Income/{Expenses) Recognised in Other Comprehensive income {OCI)

0.07 0.89)

Actuarial Loss{(Gain) arising on account of demographic assumptions

Acluarial Lossf{Gain) arising from change in financial assumplions - 0.38 0.22
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising on account of experience changes 4.40 0.16
Experience (gains)losses .
Return on Plan Assels excluding Interest Income {0.003 {0.00)
Amount recognized in OCI 4.09 0.37
Major Categories of ptan asses as a percentage of total

100% 100%

Insurer Managed Funds

The table betow shows the expeoted cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past

Maturity Analysis of Project Benefit Obligation

Within the next 12 months (nexl annual reporting period) 1.10 0.43
Belween 2 and 5 years 3.36 1.25
Between & and 10 years 2.19 0.77
Beyond 10 years 149 0.47
Total expected payments 814 2.93
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting

; 4 years 4 years
period

: As at As at
Eanlcniars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Starting Period 01-Apr-22 C1-Apr-21
Date of Reporting 3M-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions
Expected Return on Plan Assels e T3% 5.66%
Rate of Discounting 3% 5.66%
8.00% 8.00%

Rate of Salary Increase  ~ g0oog

Rale of Employee Turnover
20.00% p.a. for ail 20.00% p.a. for all
service groups. service groups.
indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
Mortadity (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Urban Ultimate

Mortality Rate After Employmentl N.m N.A.

Mortality Rate During Employment
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. . . _ Ag at As al
Change in the Pressnt Value of Projected Benefit Obligation March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Feriod 2,31 i.68
Interest cost 313 0.09
Current service cost 0.21 0.18
{Benefit Paid Direclly by the Employer} (0.75) -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.07 (0.01)
Acluarial (Gains)l.osses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (0.38) 0.22
Actuarial (Gains)/iLosses on Obligations - Due to Experience 4.40 0.16
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 5.99 2.31
As at As at
Change in the Fair Vaiue of Plan Assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Falr Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 0.18 0.17
interest Income 0.01 0.01
Return on Plan Assefs, Excluding (nterest Income 0.00 0.00
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 0.19 0.18
As at As at
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at Ihe end of the Period) (5.99) (2.31)
Fair Value of Plan Assets al the end of the Period 0.18 0.18
Funded Stalus (Surplus/ (Deficit)) {5.79) {2.13)
Net (Liability)fAsset Recognized in the Balance Shoet (5.79) (2.13)
Provigions
Current (0.70) {0.30)
Non-current {5.09) {1.83)
A guantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at As at
Rartizian March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assumptions -Discount rate
Sensitivity i_evel 100 bp 100 bp
Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % increase -3.45% -3.53%
impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease ATI% 3.83%
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 100 bp 100 bp
impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase 3.67% 3.71%
-3.46% -3.49%

Impaci on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefils to be paid 1o the current membership of the plan based on past

service of the employees as at the valuation date:

Plan Assets Composition

As at As at
Particulars March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Goted
*Insurer Managed Funds 0.19 0.18
0.19 0.18

* As per Acturial Valuation Repor?
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Note 2% Income tax expense

Rs. Millions

As at March 31, 2023

As aft March 31, 2022

{a) Income tax expense
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year -( tax expense for earlier years) - 1.59
Total current tax expense - 1.59
Deferred tax

DecreaseXincrease) in deferred fax assets 48.18 95.69
{Decreasellincrease in deferred tax fiabilities (25.08} {44.37)
Totai deferred tax expensef{benefif) 23.12 51,32
Income tax expense 2312 52.90

Income tax expense is attributable to:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 34, 2022

Total Tax Expense

Profit{Loss) as per ind AS from operations before income 1ax expense (43.67) (103.43)
Income Tax as per effective Tax Rate of 27.52% (26%) (12.18) {28.78)
Expenses not allowed for 1ax purpose 12.15 28.78
Reversal / {Creation) of Deferred Tax 23.12 51.32
fncome Tax for Earller Years - 1.69

2312 52.80

{h) Tax loss on which tax eradit not recognised in Financial Statement

As at March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Unused tax on business {osses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

(c) Deferred tax bafances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Rs. Millions

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Deforred tax fiability on account of:

Concession Intangible Assels 181.14 206,20
Borrrowings -
181.14 206.20
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for resurfacing expenses 78.04 67.47
Relirement Benefits 1.54 0.58
Unabserbed losses (including depreciation) 141.06 200.78
220.65 268.82
Net deferred tax {liability)Asset 39.51 62.63
{d) Movemant in deferred tax balancos:
Particulars Intangible ass?ts ) Unused Tax Others itams Total
toll collection rights Losses

As at Aprif 01, 2021 (270.16) 345.11 38.01 11396
Chargedf(credited) during the year

to profit or loss 63,96 (144.33) 28.04 {51.33)

to other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2022 {206.20} 200.78 68.05 652.63
As af April 01, 2022 {206.20 200.78 68.05 62.63
Charged/(credited) during the quarter

1o profit or loss 25.06 {59.72) 11.53 {23.12)

to other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2023 {181.14) 141.06 79.58 39.51
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Note 30 - Related Party Transactions

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and trasnsactions with them in the
ordinary course of business are disclosed below :

Holding Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Madan Pendse - Director

Rajesh Das - Direclor - Resigned w.e.f 26th April 2022
Mahesh Gaikwad - Director

Sandeep Arvind Joshi - Appointed w.e.f 26th April 2022

Details of transactions and closing balance
Rs. Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Transactions during the year : -

inter-corporate deposit

JR Toll Road Private Limited 50.00 63.00
Reliance Aerostructure 66.00 -
Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited - Repayment 80.00 -
Balances at the year end: -
Inter-corporate deposit
Refiance Infrastructure Limited 100.00 100.00
JR Toll Road Private Limited 113.00 63.00
Reliance Asrostructure 66.00 -
interest accrued on ICD
Reliance Aerostructure 2.68
Trade Payable
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 2.24 2.24
Sub-debts (in nature of equity) 1,202.69 1,982.69
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

44.77 4477

Equity share capital (excluding premium)
Others (specify)

(B) Key Management Personne! {(KMP) and details of fransactions with KMP :
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Note 31 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Rs. Millions
As at As al
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gurrent
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalenis 5a 58.74 1255
Other Financial Assets 5b 16.36 8.04
Non-financial assets
First charge
| Other Current Assets 7 4,88 4.02
Totai current assets pledged as security 79.98 24.61
Non-Current
First charge
Infangible Asset 4 1,265.14 1,5632.94
Cther Financial Assets 5e 0.13 0.13
Total non-current assets pledged as security 1,265.27 1,633.07
Total assets pledged as security 1,345.26 1,657.68
Note 32 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 £ of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements
Rs, Millions
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Long term Borrowings
Opening Balance - 574.09
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interast - 0.31
Repaid During the year - 874 40
Closing Balance - 0.00
Interest Expenses
Opening Balance - 3.1
interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss /
Intangible assets under development 3114 78.53
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest - {0.31}
- Unwinding of Discount on provisicns {31.14) {23.17)
- Other
interest paid to Lenders - (58.26)
Clesing Balance - -
Note 32a - Auditors Remuneration Re. Millions
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audit Fees 0.24 024
Certification Feoes - -
Totai 0.24 0.24
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Nofe 33 - Ratios

11) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio

Rs. Millions,

Particufars Mar-23 Mar-22 % Change Reason
1) Current ratio (ath) 1.03 0.58 77.26] Ratio improved mainly due to
Current Assets (a) 3568.98 187.61 repayment of entire secured
Current Liability (b) 349.88 324.13 loan.
2) Debt Equity ratio (¢/d) - - NAINA, [n current year dug fo
Debt {c) - - Company is  made fuil
Equiity (d) 1,310.30 1,461 19 repayment of Secured Term
3} Debt Service Coverage ratio { eff) - 0.40 NADSCR is low as compare to fast
EBITDA (e} 255.27 24994 year because Loan was entirely
interest on Term Loan - 58.26 repaid out of surplus cash flow
Principal Repayment - 574.40 accrued during the life of the
Total Interest & Principal Repayment (f) 0.00 532.66 project.
4} Return on Equity ratio (g/h) {0.05) {0.10) (52.54)Due to increase in looses as
Profit after Tax (g) {66.79) (156.34) compare {o last year, resulting
AverageShareholder's Equity {h) 1,385.75 1,539 54 reduction in equity ratio.
§) Trade Payable Turnover ratio (ifj) 519 2,07 150.75
Net Credit Purchases (i) 215.74 126.88
Average Trade Payable(j) 41.56 61.31
6) Net Capital Turnover ratio (k/n} 51.23 {2.78} (1.854.41)Ratio increase mainly due to
Net Sales (k) 466.43 377.15 repayment of entire secured
Current Assets (1) 358.98 18761 Logn and reduction in cash
Current Liabitities {m) 349.88 32413 balances.
Working Capital (n) {i-m} 9.10 {136.51)
7) Net Profit ratio {0.14) {0.41} (66.45)|Due 1o increase in looses as
Profit after Tax (m} {66.79) (156.34) compare to last year, resulting
Net Sales {n) 466.43 377.15 reduction in ratio.
8) Return on Capital Employed {o/r) {0.07) {0.02) {43.88)/Ratio reduced mainly due to
EBITA {0} {12.53) 24.91 repayment of entire secured
Net Worth {p) 1,310.30 1,461.19 Loan during the year
Totai Debt (g) . -
Total Capital Employed (1) {p+q) 1,310.30 1,461.19
9) Return on Investment (sit) NA NA)
10} inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA,

NA NA
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Note 34 — Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of ind AS 108 "Operating

Segment" is considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within ndia and hence, no
separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Note 35 - Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent event after the reporling year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 36 —Foreign currency Exposure
The Gompany does not have any exposure in the foreign currency.

Note 37 Other Statutory Information
i} The company has no transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

section 560 of Gompanies Act, 1956
il} The Company have nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies}, including

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the tntermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

(b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like fo or on bahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiares:

ili} The Company have not received any fund from any personis} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shalf:

(&) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parly {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{) Pravide any guarantee, securily or the like on behaif of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

iv) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1951.

Note 38 Details of Crypto currency or virtual currency
Company has not fraded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virual Currency during the financial year
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